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FEDERAL M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVI EW COWM SSI ON

OFFI CE OF ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGES
2 SKYLINE, 10th FLOOR
5203 LEESBURG PI KE
FALLS CHURCH, VIRG NIA 22041

JI' M WALTER RESOURCES, | NC., : CONTEST PROCEEDI NG
Cont est ant :
: Docket No. SE 92-249-R
V. : Citation No. 2804441; 3/13/92
SECRETARY OF LABOR, : M ne No. 7
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MsSHA) , : M ne 1D 01-01401
Respondent
SECRETARY OF LABOR, : Cl VI L PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MsSHA) , : Docket No. SE 92-328
Petitioner : A.C. No. 01-01401-03887
V. : M ne No. 7
JI' M WALTER RESOURCES, | NC.,
Respondent
DECI SI ON
Appear ances: R. Stanl ey Mirrow, Esq., Birm ngham Al abama, for

Cont est ant / Respondent ;

W liam Lawson, Esq., O fice of the Solicitor

U.S. Departnent of Labor, Birm ngham Al abam, for
Respondent/ Peti ti oner

Bef or e: Judge Fauver

The conpany's notice of contest and the Secretary's petition
for civil penalties were consolidated for hearing and deci sion,
under the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U S.C
0 801 et seq. N ne of the ten citations involved were settled
A hearing was held on the remaining charge, Citation No. 2804441.

Havi ng consi dered the hearing evidence and the record as a
whole, | find that a preponderance of the substantial, probative,
and reliable evidence establishes the Findings of Fact and
further findings in the Discussion bel ow

FI NDI NGS OF FACT

1. JimWalter Resources, Inc., operates an underground
coal mine, known as Mne No. 7, which produces coal for sale or
use in or substantially affecting interstate comrerce
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2. On March 13, 1992, Federal M ne Inspector Bill Deason
i nspected the No. 1 |longwall section of Mne No. 7. He observed
that the operator had dangered off approximately 75 feet of the
travelway in the No. 4 entry because of bad roof (beginning at
the forward crosscut), that sonme roof had fallen in and near the
crosscut (as shown in Exhibit G2), and that in Entry No. 3, near
the crosscut, there were a crack across the entry and a brow. He
found that the roof conditions constituted a hazard to mners who
were required to travel through the crosscut, and therefore
i ssued Citation No. 2804441, charging a violation of 30 C.F.R
O 75.202. The regul ation provides that "The roof, face and rib
of areas where persons work or travel shall be supported or
ot herwi se controlled to protect persons from hazards related to
falls of the roof, face or ribs and coal or rock bursts.”
0 75.202(a)

3. The conpany pronptly subnmtted a supplenent to its roof
control plan, providing for additional roof and rib support in
the area where the mners were traveling. Specifically, it
proposed to support the area by installing additional timnbers on
five foot centers in the No. 3 entry to a point outby the brow,
and to install additional cribbing on five foot centers fromthe
ribline to the shields in the No. 3 entry (as shown in Exhibit
G 3). The plan was pronptly approved by MSHA and the citation
was term nated. The supplenental plan, although acknow edgi ng
that it was "subnitted as a result of the conditions being
experienced", was submitted under protest by the conpany, which
stated in the plan: "No. 7 Mne does not agree with the necessity
of the plan and is only doing so to abate the citation issued

" Exhibit G 3.

4, The conpany had previously dangered off a travelway in
No. 3 entry because of bad roof, so that in the course of two
shifts travelways in Nos. 3 and 4 entries were dangered off
because of bad roof. The No. 3 entry had been re-opened before
the No. 4 entry was closed.

5. Advancenent of the |longwall put stress on the roof
across the crosscut intersecting Nos. 3 and 4 entries, as
evi denced by the conditions observed by | nspector Deason.
Addi tional roof support was needed to protect the m ners who
travel ed through the crosscut (in the area shown in Exhibit G 3).

DI SCUSSI ON W TH FURTHER FI NDI NGS

I find that the evidence sustains the inspector's finding
that the roof where the miners were traveling was hazardous and
requi red further support to conply with 30 CF.R [O 75.202(a).

The conpany contends that the citation is unenforceable
because it was based upon an unwitten, arbitrary policy of the
Subdi strict Manager of MSHA's Birm ngham Office. About ten years
ago, the Subdistrict Manager (M. Wekly) adopted an enforcenent
policy to cite a violation if the forward | ongwall crosscut was
used as a travelway wi thout additional roof support or
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safeguards. M. Kenneth Ely, an MSHA supervisor, testified that
M. Weekly's concern was that roof pressures created by advancing
the I ongwal | exerted substantial pressure on the forward
intersection of the longwall entries (such as the forward
crosscut connecting Nos. 3 and 4 entries) and that, as a regul ar
occurrence, the roof in that area would deteriorate and present a
hazard of falling wthout warning.

The Secretary contends that this enforcenment policy is not
arbitrary but was arrived at on the basis of the Subdistrict
Manager's review of roof control plans, accident reports, etc.
and his discussions with MSHA supervisors, inspectors, and roof
specialists, as well as his own background and experience in
m ning and mne safety and health. M. Ely testified that the
MSHA i nspectors attenpted to "marry" the manager's policy to
exi sting mne conditions, and that MSHA recogni zes t hat
enforcenent citations and orders nmust be supported by the facts
i ndependent of a nanager's policy.

The conpany contends that the manager's policy is not
enf orceabl e because it was not pronul gated in accordance with
0 101(a) of the Act, which requires formal rul emaking procedure
(in compliance with O 553 of the Administrative Procedure Act)
for any rule "promul gating, nodifying, or revoking a nmandatory
health or safety standard."

The Conmmi ssion has held that MSHA' s Program Policy Manual's
"instructions are not officially promul gated and do not prescribe
rul es of |aw binding upon [the Commission].” dd Ben Coa
Conpany 2 FMSHRC 2806, 2809 (1980). A fortiori, a Subdistrict
Manager's unwitten policy is not a safety standard or
nodi fi cation binding on the Comm ssion and cannot i ndependently
support a O 104(a) citation. Rather, it is a |ocal MSHA office
directive to inspectors. Citations or orders issued under such a
policy nmust stand or fall on their factual nerits, based on
actual mning conditions.

The evidence as to the mning conditions sustains the
i nspector's finding of a violation of 30 C.F. R 0O 75.202.

Considering the criteria for civil penalties in O 110(i) of
the Act, | find that a civil penalty of $800.00 is appropriate
for this violation.

CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

1. The judge has jurisdiction in these proceedings.

2. JimWal ters Resources, Inc., violated 30 C.F. R
0 75.202 as alleged in Citation No. 2804441
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ORDER

WHEREFORE I T IS ORDERED wi thin 30 days fromthe date of this
Deci sion, JimWilters Resources, Inc., shall pay the approved
settlement civil penalties of $2,814 and a civil penalty of $800
for the violation charged in Citation No. 2804441, for a total of
$3,614 in civil penalties.

W I |i am Fauver
Adm ni strative Law Judge

Di stribution:

W I liam Lawson, Esqg., O fice of the Solicitor, U S. Departnment of
Labor, 2015 Second Avenue North, Suite 201, Birm ngham Al abama
35203 (Certified Mil)

R. Stanley Mrrow, Esq., JimWlter Resources, Inc., P. O Box
830079, Birm ngham Al abama 35283-0079 (Certified Mil)

/fcca



